I. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


1. 	 The Circuit Court erred in signing, without modification, the order drafted entirely by 
Respondents, stripping W. Va. Code §§ 16-29B-20 and 9-5-16(A) of all meaning and 
function, and leaving Respondents with unfettered authority to set Medicaid rates in the 
arbitrary and capricious manner they have employed. 

2. 	 The Circuit Court plainly erred in holding that Petitioner does not have a clear legal right 
to challenge Respondents' methodology of setting Medicaid reimbursements, an error 
that affected the Circuit Court's handling of the entire Complaint. 

3. 	 The Circuit Court erred in holding that federal law preempted a state court action; if 
allowed to stand, the Circuit Court's interpretation of West Virginia law would raise 
federal supremacy clause issues and claims. 

4. 	 The Circuit Court erred in finding that Respondents could not have breached the Provider 
Agreement by failing to establish Medicaid rates that did not meet the requirements of 
state and federal Law. 

5. 	 The Circuit Court clearly erred in construing the federal prohibition against balance 
billing Medicaid patients in 42 C.F.R. § 447.15 to mean that Respondents could set 
Medicaid rates at any level they choose, no matter how low the rates were and even if 
they were in violation of statutory standards. 

6. 	 The Circuit Court erred in holding that Federal Upper Payment Limit rules in federal 
regulations that classify government operated hospitals separately from privately 
operated hospitals serve as a reasonable classification to pay West Virginia government 
hospitals higher Medicaid reimbursements than similarly situated privately owned 
hospitals. 

7. 	 The Circuit Court erred in finding that none of the ten Counts in the Complaint could 
provide relief for Respondents' failure to follow statutory requirements in setting the 
hospital Medicaid rates. 

8. 	 The Circuit Court applied the wrong standards in dismissing the Complaint under West 
Virginia Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6). 

9. 	 The Circuit Court misapplied West Virginia Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6) and, 
considering matters outside the pleadings, effectively converting Respondents' motion to 
one for summary judgment under West Virginia Rule of Civil Procedure 56, while 
improperly deciding genuine issues of material fact. 
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I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 


This appeal involves the lower court's July 19, 2011 Order ("the Order") granting the 

RespondentslDefendants' motion dismissing PetitionerlPlaintiffs ten count Complaint in its 

entirety at the outset of the case. While the Circuit Court of Kanawha County, West Virginia 

("Circuit Court") considered Respondents' affidavits and resolved genuine issues of material fact 

in their favor, it treated the motion as one to dismiss and not one for summary judgment, refusing 

to consider affidavits and other evidence filed by Petitioner. (A.R. 3).1 

A. 	 The parties 

Petitioner, Appalachian Regional Healthcare, Inc. d/b/a Beckley ARH Hospital 

("Beckley ARH") operates a 173-bed acute care and psychiatric hospital in Beckley, West 

Virginia. Beckley ARH provides much needed access to medical services to both Medicaid 

beneficiaries and the general population in a primary service area that includes Raleigh County 

(where the hospital is located), as well as the surrounding counties of Summers, Mercer, Fayette, 

and Greenbrier. Its secondary service area includes Nicholas, Boone, and Wyoming counties. 

CA.R. 27-29). 

Beckley ARH filed this action for declaratory, injunctive, and other legal or equitable 

relief because the Respondents' failure to administer the West Virginia Medicaid Program in 

accordance with the provisions of both West Virginia and federal law is causing Beckley ARH to 

suffer great losses. These loses, in turn, threaten access to quality hospital services in the 

southern half of the state. For example, it costs $14.7 million a year to treat West Virginia 

Medicaid patients, yet Respondents' rates cover only $9.9 million or, on average, sixty-seven 

1 References to the Appendix Record - the contents of which were agreed to by the parties - are set forth 
as "A.R. #." 
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percent of the costs necessary to provide that care. (AR. 5). This enormous disparity between 

rates and costs is not, however, the result of poor management by Beckley ARH. According to 

figures compiled by the West Virginia Health Care Authority ("WV HCA"), Beckley ARH is 

one of the lowest cost hospitals in West Virginia. (AR. 8, 280-81). Both its sixty-bed 

psychiatric unit and its one-hundred acute care beds are operated at near capacity? However, the 

Circuit Court summarily dismissed the entire ten count Complaint holding, for example, that 

Beckley ARH could not challenge the adequacy or reasonableness of even Respondents' lowest 

Medicaid rates paying only forty-eight percent of costs. (AR. 14-15). 

The Respondent, West Virginia Department of Health and Human Resources ("DHHR"), 

is currently responsible for administering West Virginia's Medical Assistance Program 

("Medicaid Program") which it does through the Respondent, Bureau for Medicaid Services 

("BMS"). Respondents, Michael J. Lewis, M.D., Ph.D, the Secretary of DHHR ("Secretary"), 

and Nancy Atkins, the Commissioner of BMS ("Commissioner"),3 were joined specifically 

because injunctive and mandamus relief are among the remedies sought. (AR.28). 

B. 	 Procedural history 

Beckley ARH gave Respondents and the Attorney General thirty days' notice as required 

by W. Va. Code § 55-17-3 before filing the Complaint on December 27, 2010 with the Circuit 

Court, the Honorable James C. Stucky presiding. (AR. 28, 253-55). Respondents moved to 

2 Beckley ARH is licensed for 173 beds but only has 160 beds in service. With its high Medicare 
utilization, the hospital is designated as a Medicare Dependent Hospital ("MDH"). As an MOH, its 
Medicare reimbursements would be reduced if the hospital had more than 100 acute care beds in 
operation. (A.R. 278-79). 

3 Both the Secretary and the Commissioner were named in their official capacities and not individually. 
For purposes of simplicity, Respondents will be referred to collectively herein as "Respondents" unless it 
is necessary to identify the individual Respondent specifically for purposes of clarity. 
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dismiss or, in the alternative, for summary judgment, on February 28,2011. (A.R.49).4 A brief 

hearing was conducted on May 4, 2011, and the Circuit Court requested that the parties submit 

Proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law. (AR. 629). Sometime in July, in 

apparently an ex parte communication, the Circuit Court asked Respondents to draft an order 

dismissing the case. Respondents' proposed Order granting their motion to dismiss in its entirety 

was summarily granted and entered without change on July 19, 2011. (A.R.3). 

In its Order, the Circuit Court held that "[o]nly matters contained in the pleading can be 

considered on a motion to dismiss." (AR. 5) (emphasis added). But then, the Court considered 

Respondents' affidavits and other exhibits - matters that were outside the pleadings - somehow 

finding that they were not "outside the allegations of the Complaint." (A.R. 9, 19). The Court 

ignored, however, the detailed affidavits and other evidence submitted by Beckley ARH in 

response to Respondents' Motions. And, the Court treated all the facts pleaded in the fact-laden, 

twenty-page Complaint as conclusions of law. 

The focus of this appeal is on glaring substantive and procedural errors committed by the 

Circuit Court below. In so doing, the Circuit Court brushed aside important issues of first 

impression and great significance to every citizen in the State of West Virginia. 

c. Background 

Title XIX of the Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 1396-1396u, provides for the 

establishment of programs of medical assistance to make health care available to indigent or 

4 On March 1, 2011, Respondents filed an amended memorandum of law in support of their motion to 
dismiss or, in the alternative, for summary judgment, to correct inadvertent omissions in a number of the 
Exhibits contained in their February 28, 2011 filing. Respondents did not file an amended motion. That 
said, citations to Respondents motion is to that filed on February 28, 2011 (A.R. 49-51), while citations to 
Respondents' supporting memorandum of law and attached Exhibits are to those submitted on March 1, 
2011 (A.R. 52-111). 
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impoverished persons. These programs, commonly referred to as "Medicaid," are cooperative 

federal-state programs. The federal government provides the bulk of the funds. Participating 

states match those funds with their own funds and administer the individual state's Medicaid 

Program. Participation by a state in Medicaid is entirely voluntary. But, the state must agree to 

structure its Medicaid program in compliance with federal Medicaid statutes and regulations. 

West Virginia has elected to participate with the federal government in implementing and 

administering its Medicaid Program. (A.R. 28). 

The federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS") oversees the federal 

government's participation in state Medicaid programs. While the states have been given 

significant latitude in setting reimbursement rates for providers of Medicaid services, federal law 

imposes certain requirements or guidelines for setting those rates. For example, the federal 

Equal Access Provision requires that a state Medicaid program pay rates to providers that 

are consistent with efficiency, economy, and quality of care and 
are sufficient to enlist enough providers so that care and services 
are available under the plan at least to the extent that such care and 
services are available to the general population in the service area . 

42 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(30)(A). (A.R. 29). 

In 1983, in initially authorizing West Virginia's Medicaid Program, the West Virginia 

Legislature gave the West Virginia Health Care Authority ("WV HCA") the authority to set and 

regulate hospital rates for Medicaid services. See W. Va. Code § 16-29B-1O(a) (A.R. 29). In 

doing so, the State Legislature also set standards for establishing the Medicaid rates to be paid to 

hospitals for Medicaid services that were consistent with federal law. For example, in W. Va. 

Code § 16-29B-20(a)(1), the State Legislature instructed that hospital rates, in general, should be 

set to ensure that "the costs of the hospital's services are reasonably related to the services 

provided and the rates are reasonably related to the costs." In subsection (a)(3) of that same 
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statute, the Legislature was very specific concerning the Medicaid rates that were to be set for 

hospitals. Those rates were to be 

reasonable and adequate to meet the costs which must be incurred 
by efficiently and economically operated hospitals subject to the 
provision of this article. The rates shall take into account the 
situation of hospitals which serve disproportionate numbers of low 
income patients and assure that individuals eligible for Medicaid 
have reasonable access, taking into account geographic location 
and reasonable travel time, to inpatient hospital services of 
adequate quality. 

This language was taken almost verbatim from the federal Boren Amendment, 42 U.S.C. § 

1396a(a)(l3)(A).5 The West Virginia Legislature also prohibited rate-setting that included 

discounts below hospital costs or which caused cost shifting to other payors. 42 U.S.C. § 

1396(a)(2). (A.R. 29-30). 

While Respondents dispute the fact that the WV HCA ever had authority to set Medicaid 

rates (A.R. 133, 195), that was not the finding of the federal court in United Hospital Center, Inc. 

v. Richardson, 757 F.2d 1445 (4th Cir. 1985). (A.R. 29). More importantly, though, 

Respondents could not explain why the West Virginia Legislature included the Boren 

Amendment language for setting Medicaid rates in W. Va. Code § 16-29B-20(a)(3), unless it 

intended for the State's rates to conform to that standard. Subsection (a)(3) of the statute, in 

particular, is a meaningless dead letter if it does not apply to Medicaid rates.6 

CMS requires that a single state agency be responsible for a state's Medicaid Program. 

In addition to rate setting, this includes such matters as beneficiary benefits and eligibility 

5 The Boren Amendment, 42 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(13)(A), was repealed in 1997. The language of that 
statute has been retained in federal regulation, 42 C.F.R. § 447.253, as well as the West Virginia statute. 

6 The Circuit Court simply labeled Beckley ARH's allegations "without merit," resolving factual issues in 
Respondents' favor based on the affidavits of Sally Richardson and James Pitrolo, Jr. (A.R. 9). 
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standards, matters the rate-setting WV RCA presumably was not suited to oversee. Thus, BMS, 

as a division of DHHR, was recognized as "the federally designated single state agency charged 

with the administration and supervision of the state Medicaid program." W. Va. Code § 9-1

2(n). (A.R. 30). 

But, the provisions of W. Va. Code § 16-29B-20(a)(1) and (a)(3) were not revoked. 

Significantly, in giving Medicaid rate setting authority to BMS, the West Virginia Legislature 

again stressed that in setting Medicaid rates, the agency was 

to encourage the long-term well planned development of fair and 
equitable reimbursement methodologies and systems for all health 
care providers reimbursed under the Medicaid program in its 
entirety, and to ensure that reimbursement for services of all such 
health care providers is determined without undue discrimination 
or preference and with full consideration of adequate and 
reasonable compensation to such health care providers for the cost 
of providing such services. 

W. Va. Code § 9-5-16(a) (emphasis added). Thus, the expressed intention of the Legislature has 

always been that adequate and reasonable rates should be set for the Medicaid Program. 

The Circuit Court held, however, that neither W. Va. Code § 9-5-16 nor W. Va. Code § 

16-29B-20 required Respondents to establish Medicaid rates that were "adequate, reasonable or 

in accordance with them." (A.R. 11). Relying solely on federal law, the Circuit Court held that 

"[t]here is a legal duty on the part of Defendant to establish Medicaid rates in accordance with 

methods and standards developed by the state." Those standards included the duty to (1) "take 

into account the situation of hospitals which serve a disproportionate number of low income 

patients with special needs;" (2) "to set rates that are reasonable and adequate to meet the costs 

that are incurred by efficiently and economically operated facilities;" and (3) "to assure that 

eligible Medicaid recipients will have reasonable access to inpatient hospital services ofadequate 

quality." (A.R. 15) The Circuit Court found, however, that all these requirements had been met 
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by Respondents, thereby resolving all factual issues in Respondents' favor in granting their 

motion to dismiss. Id. 

By any measure, the Medicaid rates set by Respondents are woefully inadequate and 

unreasonable. The rates have not been set in accordance with any applicable statutory standards. 

They are causing Beckley ARH great financial harm. (A.R. 31). For example, during its Fiscal 

Year End June 30, 2009 ("FYE 6/30/09"),7 Beckley ARB incurred $6.1 million in costs 

providing inpatient acute care services to West Virginia Medicaid beneficiaries. It was paid only 

$2.9 million, however, by the Medicaid Program for those services, an amount representing 

forty-eight percent of its costs. During that same rate period, Beckley ARB incurred 

$3.9 million providing outpatient acute care services to West Virginia Medicaid beneficiaries. It 

was paid only $2.6 million for those services (or, sixty-seven percent of its costs incurred in 

treating those patients). A substantial portion of the psychiatric patients treated in Beckley 

ARB's psychiatric unit are also Medicaid patients. During its FYE 6/30109 Beckley ARH 

provided 7,558 days of psychiatric care to Medicaid patients. It incurred $4.5 million in costs in 

treating those patients, but received only $4.3 million in Medicaid reimbursements (an amount 

equaling ninety-four percent of its costs for those patients from Respondents). (A.R. 31). 

Thus, in that one year it cost Beckley ARB $14.7 million in total, to treat Medicaid 

patients. It only received, however, $9.9 million in payments from Respondents for that care. 

Therefore, Beckley ARB's overall or average cost coverage for treating West Virginia Medicaid 

7 At the time Beckley ARH gave the required thirty-day notice to Respondents, the hospital's FYE 
6/30/09 Cost Report was the most recent, available cost report. It is representative, though, of the chronic 
problems with the Medicaid rates. 
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patients was sixty-seven percent of costs. This left the hospital with a $4.8 million annualloss.8 

(A.R. 31). 

Pursuant to federal regulation, Respondents are required to give "assurances" to CMS 

that their methodology produces adequate and reasonable Medicaid rates in compliance with 

federal standards. 42 C.F.R. § 447.253(a). CMS also requires that a state Medicaid agency 

make "findings" that its rates are "adequate and reasonable,,9 to support the "assurances" made to 

the federal agency. 42 C.F.R. § 447.253(b). Respondents did not allege, nor did they produce, 

any "findings" regarding the adequacy of their Medicaid rates. Any "assurances" Respondents 

may have made to CMS are suspect given the fact that Beckley ARH, a very efficient, low-cost 

hospital, is being paid, on average, sixty-seven percent of its costs for treating Medicaid patients. 

Respondents argued that eMS' approval of Respondents' State Plan based on 

"assurances" given proved the rates must be adequate and reasonable. That circular argument 

8 In order to clearly illustrate the entire picture, Beckley ARH infonned the Circuit Court in its Complaint 
that it received Disproportionate Share Hospital ("DSH") payments of approximately $300,000 for 
treating a disproportionately high number of Medicaid and indigent patients without insurance. Those 
DSH payments had to set off, however, against $11.5 million in unreimbursed costs for care Beckley 
ARH provided primarily to indigent patients without insurance. It also received in its FYE 6/30/09, for 
example, approximately $1.7 million in "enhanced" payments. However, Respondents fund the state 
portion of both these DSH and enhanced payments, in part, with intergovernmental transfers ("IGTs") 
from the Public Employees Insurance Agency ("PEIA"). That agency provides health care benefits to 
West Virginia public employees in return for fronting PEIA money for the state Medicaid match. As a 
quid quo pro, PEIA reduces the rates it pays to providers through its prospective payment system to rates 
that approximate the Medicaid rates. Therefore, the adequacy of the Medicaid rates cannot be assessed in 
a vacuum. The funding for the Medicaid Program is complicated and all the pieces need to be examined. 
Neither Respondents nor the Circuit Court wanted to get into any details. They simply brushed all issues 
aside in a rush to dispose of the case. But even if the $300,000 in DSH payments and $1.7 million in 
enhanced payments are included in Beckley ARH's total Medicaid payments for FYE 6/30/09 and 
corresponding costs are discounted, then the total payments of $11.9 million still do not come anywhere 
close to covering Beckley ARH's $14.7 million in annual costs incurred in treating Medicaid patients. 
(A.R.32-33). 

9 These "findings" are to be made by the state Medicaid agency any time it makes changes to its rate 
setting methodology but, in any event, no less often than annually. 42 C.F.R. § 447.253. 
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was adopted in whole by the Circuit Court. (A.R. 16-17). But CMS does not look behind a 

state's "assurances." The federal agency made that clear in Association ofResidential Resources 

in Minnesota (ARRM) v. Minnesota Commissioner of Human Services, 2004 WL 2066822 (D. 

Minn. Aug. 18, 2004). In that case, a provider association and the parents of a Medicaid 

beneficiary brought suit joining the CMS Regional Administrator ("RA"), seeking to compel him 

by mandamus or other means to conduct a targeted and focused review of the Minnesota 

Medicaid program's new rebasing plan for home and community based care. The CMS RA 

defended, however, on the basis that the law was "designed to limit the Secretary's review to the 

State's assurances, not its findings" and only "very limited, and even minimal review by the 

federal government" was required. ARRM, 2004 WL 2066822 at *3. The court agreed, finding 

that CMS had discretion to do next to nothing in reviewing a State Plan Amendment: 

That discretion is limited only by the requirement that the State 
provide assurances to the Secretary [of CMS], and those 
assurances need be adequate only to the Secretary. The statute 
contemplates only minimal review by the Secretary, 42 U.S.C. § 
1396n(f)(2). For example, the Secretary is not required to make 
findings, or investigate a State's assurances; but only to receive 
assurances that are satisfactory to the Secretary.

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