I. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 


Respondents' Motion to Dismiss for failure to state a claim upon which relief can be 

granted was properly granted. Mandamus is a remedy for administrative inaction and is not 

available where action has already been taken, and does not provide a vehicle for judicial 

review of the rates set by Respondents. A contractual claim does not arise under a statute 

unless the Legislature explicitly expresses to waive sovereign immunity and create a 

contractual remedy. Verbatim adoption of proposed findings and conclusions of law prepared 

by one party does not constitute reversible error, and may be reversed only if findings adopted 

by the court inaccurately reflect the existing law and the trial record. 

II. STATEMENTS REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Respondent submits that the dispositive issue in this matter is whether or not the trial 

court committed reversible error by granting Respondents' 12(b)(6) Motion to Dismiss. The 

standard for granting a Motion to Dismiss has been authoritatively decided. Respondent further 

offers that the facts and legal arguments are adequately presented in the briefs and record on 

appeal. Based on the foregoing, oral argument pursuant to Rule 18 (a) (3) and (4) appears to 

be unnecessary. 

Respondent submits that this matter may be suitable for a Rule 19 argument as it 

involves assignments of error in the application of settled law, that is, the trial court committed 

reversible error by using the wrong standards in granting Respondents' 12(b)(6) Motion to 

Dismiss. 

Respondent offers that this matter may not be suitable for a Rule 20 argument because 

the issue of the standard in granting or deny a 12(b)(6)motion is not one of first impression. 
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III. ARGUMENT 

1. 	The Trial court did not commit reversible error by signing, without 
modification, the order drafted entirely by Respondents, did not strip 
W.Va. Code §§ 16-298-20 or 9-5-16(A) of all meaning and function, and 
did not leave Respondents with unfettered authority to set Medicaid rates 
in an arbitrary and capricious manner. 

Petitioner complains that the trial court adopted verbatim the proposed findings and 

conclusions of law prepared by the Respondents. 1 Verbatim adoption of proposed findings and 

conclusions of law prepared by one party is not the preferred practice, but it does not constitute 

reversible error. See, State of West Virginia ex reI. Thornton Cooper v. Caperton, 196 W.Va. 

208, 470 S.E.2d 162 (1996). 

Counts I - IV of the Complaint alleged violations of state statutes that result in 

Respondents' reimbursement rates set for hospital services provided to Medicaid recipients not 

being adequate, reasonable or in accordance with state statutory standards found at W.Va. 

Code §§ 16-29B-20 and 9-5-16 or federal regulatory standards found at 42 U.S.C. § 1396a 

(a)(30)(A). (A.R. 29, 38-40). 

Count I of the Complaint alleged that Respondents violated W.Va. Code §16-29B-20. In 

response to the Complaint allegations, Respondents answered they had not. In their Motion to 

Dismiss, Respondent argued through the affidavit of Ms. Tina Bailes that she was the former 

Chief Financial Officer for Respondent's Bureau for Medical Services, was responsible for WV 

Medicaid reimbursement methodologies, was aware of the Bureau for Medical Services being 

the Medicaid single state agency, and was aware of the execution of Petitioners' Medicaid 

provider agreement. (A.R. 132-134). 

I Pursuant to W.va. Rev. R. App. P. 41(c), Respondent's request substitution of ex-Department of Health 
and Human Resources Secretary Michael Lewis' name with the name of the newly appointed Department 
of Health and Human Resources Acting Secretary, Rocco F. Fucillo. 
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Count I of the Complaint further alleged that Respondents violated W.va. Code § 16

29B-20 by failing to apply proper standards in setting the rates for reimbursing Petitioner for 

providing care to Medicaid beneficiaries, and caused it substantial harm. (A.R. 38). 

Respondents Motion to Dismiss argued that Respondents had not failed to apply proper 

standards in setting the rates for reimbursing Petitioner for providing care to Medicaid 

beneficiaries due to the Legislature having not revoked the provisions of W.Va. Code § 16-29B

20(a)(1) and (3) when it transferred Medicaid rate setting authority to the Bureau for Medical 

Services. Respondents argued the West Virginia Health Care Authority, (WVHCA), never had 

Medicaid hospital rate setting authority and supported its argument with the affidavits of Sally 

Richardson, former Director of the WVHCA and James Pitrolo, Jr., current Director of the 

WVHCA. (A.R. 109-111). Petitioner admitted in footnote 9 of its Response in Opposition to 

Respondent's Motion to Dismiss or for Summary Judgment that "it is undisputed that during all 

times relevant to this litigation, DHHR and its division, Bureau for Medical Services, have been 

solely responsible for setting adequate Medicaid rates ... " (A.R. 210-211). At the hearing on 

the Motion to Dismiss, counsel for Petitioner admitted that W.Va. Code § 16-29B-20 did not 

apply to Medicaid hospital reimbursement rates. The trial court Order concluded that W.va. 

Code § 16-29B-20 does not apply to Medicaid reimbursement rate setting. (A.R. 19). No 

matters outside the allegations of the Complaint were considered. 

The Petitioner argued that the trial court committed error in holding Petitioner does not 

have a clear legal right to challenge Respondents' not setting Medicaid rates in compliance with 

W.va. Code § 16-29B-20. Petitioner alleged because the authority to set Medicaid rates was 

first held by the WVHCA and later transferred to Respondents, Respondents must continue to 

follow the HCA standards for setting hospital rates. But Petitioner cites only part of HCA 

statutes to support its claim, and ignores federal statutory and case law regarding rate setting 

for Medicaid services provided by health care providers. 
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The Complaint fails to note the provision of W.va. Code § 16-29D-3(b) which states 

(b) It is expressly recognized that no other entity may interfere with the 
discretion and judgment given to the single state agency which administers the 
state's Medicaid program. Thus, it is the intention of the Legislature that nothing 
contained in this article shall be interpreted, construed, or applied to interfere 
with the powers and actions of the single state agency which, in keeping with 
applicable federal law, shall administer the state's Medicaid program as it 
perceives to be in the best interest of that program and its beneficiaries. 

The Complaint cites Chapter 16-29B-10(a) for the proposition that Respondents must 

follow the HCA methods of rate setting, but W.Va. Code § 16-29D-3(b) expressly states that is 

not the case regarding the Medicaid program. (A.R. 9, 125). See, also, United Hosp. Center, 

Inc. v. Richardson, C.A.4 (W.Va.) 1985; 757 F.2d 1445. The issue in United Hosp. Center v. 

Richardson, a section 1983 action, was the jurisdiction of the WVHCA Board to govern health 

service charges by state acute care hospitals in the interim between the effective date of the 

Boards' creation, and the date after the assumption of jurisdiction over such rates by the Board 

and the issuance of initial rates for the hospitals. Regulations adopted by the Board created 

under West Virginia Health Care Review Act were not intended to apply to adjustments made in 

connection with Medicare or Medicaid charges. Thus, the regulations of the Board did not 

contravene the Social Security Act and were not constitutionally invalid under supremacy and 

due process clauses of the Federal Constitution. 757 F.2d 1445, Id., at 1449 The trial court did 

not commit error by holding that under WV Code §§16-29B-10 or 20, Petitioner failed to state a 

claim upon which relief may be granted. (A.R. 9-15, 19 and 49). 

Count I of the Complaint further alleged that Respondents violated W.Va. Code §9-5-16 

by failing to apply proper standards in setting the rates for reimbursing Petitioner for providing 

care to Medicaid beneficiaries, and this violation caused sUbstantial harm to Petitioner. (A.R. 

30, 38). However, that Code provision only requires Respondents to study its rates. It does not 

give Petitioner a right to challenge Respondents method for setting its rates. Further, W.va. 

Code §9-5-16(e) specifically states: 
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(e) Nothing in this section shall be construed to give the Legislature 
any jurisdiction over the Medicaid program or its operations. Acts 
1988, c.86. 

The conclusion of law of the trial court on this issue accurately reflects existing law and the trial 

record. The dismissal of Count I of the Complaint should be affirmed. 

2. 	 The Trial Court did not commit plain error in holding Petitioner does not have 

a clear legal right to challenge respondents' Medicaid rates. 

Petitioner complains the trial court order is based on matters outside of the Complaint, 

the wrong standard was used for granting relief to the Motion to Dismiss, and therefore the 

Motion to Dismiss should be converted into a Motion for Summary Judgment. Respondents 

disagree. 

Count II of the Complaint claimed Respondents failed to comply with W.Va. Code §§16

298-20, 9-5-16(a) and other applicable provisions by establishing unreasonable and inadequate 

rates, and sought a writ of mandamus directing Respondents to reimburse it for Medicaid 

services at rates that are adequate, reasonable, in keeping with statutory standards, and meets 

all its costs in providing hospital services to Medicaid beneficiaries. (A.R. 39). 

A Writ of Mandamus will not be issued unless three elements coexist: (1) a clear legal 

right in the Petitioner to the relief sought, (2) a legal duty on the part of respondent to do the 

thing which Petitioner seeks to compel, and (3) the absence of another adequate remedy. 

Petitioner has no clear legal right to any set amount of Medicaid reimbursement under WV 

Code §§ 16-298-20 or 9-5-16(a). Petitioner has no clear legal right under WV Code §§ 16-298

20 or 9-5-16(a) to being reimbursed for all its costs incurred in operating an acute care hospital. 

(A.R. 33, 145-193). Respondents have no legal duty under WV Code §§ 16-298-20 or 9-5

16(a) to reimburse Petitioner for all its costs for providing hospital services to Medicaid 

beneficiaries. Petitioner has no claim under state law to recover all its costs for providing 

hospital services to Medicaid beneficiaries. 
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Respondents have developed reimbursement methodologies and systems for all health 

care providers reimbursed under the Medicaid program in its entirety within its budgetary 

constraints and in compliance with federal standards, which includes hospital services 

reimbursement. (A.R. 132-134). The Complaint alleges that Respondents' rates are not 

reasonable and adequate to meet its costs. Respondent is not required to pay rates that meet 

Petitioners' costs as it is not a state government operated hospital. Petitioner alleges no 

statute, federal or state, that so requires. Respondents use the same rates methodology 

established for federal Medicare hospital reimbursement rates to set WV Medicaid hospital 

reimbursement rates. (A.R. 150). Respondents submit that Petitioners' remedy to contest the 

rates set by Respondents for reimbursement of its provided Medicaid hospital services, other 

than withdrawing from the Medicaid program, may be had at Respondents' federally required 

public hearings prior to Medicaid reimbursement rate changes. (A.R. 133). In, In re NYAHSA 

Litigation, N.D.N.Y. 2004, 318 F.Supp.2d 30 (2004), affirmed 444 F.3d 147 (2006), it was held, 

"Medicaid Act provision requiring that state plans for medical assistance provide public process 

giving providers reasonable opportunity for review and comment on proposed Medicaid 

reimbursement rates for nursing facility services replaced opportunity to challenge rates by way 

of private action, authorized by the repealed Boren Amendment. 

Petitioner argues that the Cort/Hurley test applied in Cort v. Ash, 422 U.S. 66 (1975), 

should have been applied by the trial court in determining whether or not it had a clear right to 

the relief requested. Petitioners Brief, p. 22 - 24. Petitioner bases its argument on the 

allegation that the Boren Amendment language has not been stricken from the West Virginia 

statutes, therefore, it remains state law. But the WV statutes and case law clearly state that 

Respondents must administer its federal assistance program consistent with federal law. 

W.Va. Code § 9-2-3. And, the intent of Congress in enacting the Balanced Budget Act of 1997, 

which repealed the Boren Amendment was that neither the Balanced Budget Act of 1997, nor 
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any other provision of 42 U.S.C. § 1396a was to be interpreted as establishing a cause of 

action for hospitals and nursing facilities relative to the adequacy of the rates they receive. 

(A.R.17). 

Petitioner has delivered an "artful pleading", which is defined as "A Petitioner's disguised 

phrasing of a federal claim as solely a state-law claim in order to prevent a Respondent from 

removing the case from state court to federal court. Blacks Law Dictionary, 9th Ed. (2004). 

Petitioner does have another adequate remedy if it is not satisfied with the reimbursement 

amount it agreed to accept as payment in full under its agreement voluntarily entered into with 

Respondents to be a provider of Medicaid hospital services. That remedy is to terminate its 

contract as a Medicaid provider. Petitioner argues termination is no adequate remedy, but it is. 

As the burden of proof as to all the elements necessary to obtain mandamus is upon the party 

seeking the relief, a failure to meet anyone of them is fatal. 52 Am. Jur. 2d Mandamus § 3 at 

271 (2000) (footnote omitted). Mandamus relief is a proper remedy to require the performance 

of nondiscretionary legal duties by various governmental agencies or bodies. Syllabus Point 1, 

State ex reI. Richey v. Hill, 216 W.va. 155, 603 S.E.2d 177 (2004). Mandamus does not lie "to 

obtain review of the decision of public officers who have acted and to command them to act in a 

new and different manner" Boston Medical Corp., Harding v Comm. of Ins., 225 N.E.2d 903 

(67), or to compel a public official "to exercise his or her judgment or discretion in a particular 

way." Urban Transport, Inc. v. Mayor or Boston, 369 N.E.2d 1135 (1997). 

Here, the Respondents' statutory duty is to set rates of reimbursement for services 

provided under its State Plan by entering into contracts with providers who agree to accept the 

rates it has set. The Respondents have done exactly that. Mandamus does not provide a 

vehicle for judicial review of the rates set by the Respondents, even in the face of an argument 

that those rates fail to meet statutory standards. Section 1396a(a)(30)(A) cited by the Petitioner 

gives Bureau for Medical Services wide discretion to set Medicaid payments that are consistent 
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with efficiency, economy, and access to quality care (emphasis added). There has been no 

allegation that any Medicaid beneficiary does not have access to Medicaid services in Beckley, 

West Virginia or any other of Petitioners' service areas, only that "the current reimbursements 

continue to be similarly inadequate and threaten access to hospital service by Medicaid 

patients. (emphasis added) (A.R. 31). Respondents' statutory duty is to set rates of 

reimbursement for providers of Medicaid hospital services who have entered into contracts 

agreeing to accept the rates set. 42 C.F.R. § 447.15; See, also, Friedman v. Perales, S.D.N. Y. 

1987, 668 F.Supp. 216, affirmed 841 F.2d 47 holding, "under efficient cost standard for setting 

Medicaid reimbursement rates, states need not reimburse individual providers for costs they 

actually or even reasonably incur". Respondents have taken that discretionary administrative 

action of setting the reimbursement rates. Petitioner argues it has no other remedy and that 

not participating in the Medicaid is not a remedy. It may not be Petitioners remedy of choice, 

but not participating in the Medicaid program is a remedy. Going to the public hearings 

Respondent has held when it makes a change to its rates for hospital services reimbursement 

is the remedy authorized by the Department for Health and Human Services/CMS for Medica.id 

providers who wish to challenge reimbursement rates. This was averred to in Respondents' 

Motion to Dismiss, Bailes Affidavit, Exhibit 1, p. 2. (A.R.136). 

Assuming Respondents have some contractual obligation to set Medicaid rates under 

an obligation of good faith and fair dealing, that contractual obligation is tempered by federal 

law requirements under 42 U.S.C. 1396a(a)(13)(A) to comply with the federal procedural 

requirements in setting its Medicaid rates. 

The conclusions of law of the trial court on this issue accurately reflect existing law and 

the trial record. The dismissal of Count II of the Complaint should be affirmed. 

Count III of the Complaint sought a declaratory judgment that Respondents must follow 

the West Virginia Health Care Authority (WVHCA) statutory standard in W.va. Code § 16-29B
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20 for setting its hospital reimbursement rates. (A. R. 39-40). Respondents argued that this

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